ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 18, 2007
2:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 104
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska Gasline [Inducement  Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducemnment
Act coordinator; naking conform ng anendnments; and providing for
an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 104

SHORT TI TLE: NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQIECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 05/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

03/ 14/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 16/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 16/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 19/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 19/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 18, 2007



03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 27/ 07
03/ 27/ 07
03/ 27/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
04/ 01/ 07
04/ 01/ 07
04/ 01/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07

04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 11/ 07
04/ 11/ 07

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

RES AT 5: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 4:15 PM FAHRENKAMP 203
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 3: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 3: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 5: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 12: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 104(RES) Qut of Conmmittee

M NUTE( RES)

RES RPT CS 6AM  SAME TI TLE

AM  HUGE NS, GREEN, STEVENS, STEDMAN,

W ELECHOWEKI , WAGONER

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved Qut of Conmittee 4/1/07
M NUTE( RES)

JUD AT 2:45 PM BELTZ 211
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

- 2- April 18,

2007



04/ 11/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 11/ 07 (S) JUD AT 5:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 11/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 11/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 12/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 12/ 07 (S Public Testinony 5:30 pmto 7:00 pm
04/ 13/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 13/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 13/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 13/ 07 (S) JUD AT 5:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 13/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 13/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 14/ 07 (S) JUD AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 15/ 07 (S) JUD AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 15/ 07 (S) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 16/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 16/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 16/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 17/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203
04/ 17/ 07 (S <Tel econference Listen Only>
04/ 18/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:45 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 18/ 07 (S) JUD AT 5:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed changes in Version O CS for SB
104

DON BULLOCK, Attorney

Al aska Legal and Research Services Division

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: CQutlined changes in Version OCS for SB 104

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:03:16 PM Present at the call to
order were Senator MQire, Senator Welechowski, and Chair
French. Senator Huggins and Senator Therriault arrived soon
thereafter.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 18, 2007



SB 104- NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROQJECT

2:03: 35 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 104 and asked for
a notion to adopt Version O commttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI notioned to adopt Version O |abeled 25-
GS1060\ O, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.

2:04:09 PM
MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Conm ssioner for the Departnent of Revenue,
i ntroduced hersel f.

DON BULLOCK, Attorney with Al aska Legal and Research Services
Division, introduced hinmself and clarified he was present to
discuss the bill and not the policies. He summarized the five
articles within AS 43.90 as follows: Article 1 is the purpose

Article 2 generally has the provisions relating to the |icensee;
Article 3 has the tax and royalty inducenent provisions and a
voucher option; Article 4 has mscellaneous provisions; and
Article 5 has general provisions including the definitions.

MR. BULLOCK said he believes sonme sections have been noved into
a nore |ogical order. The abandonnent provision was in 43.90.120
and now it’'s located in 43.90.240. That provision relates to
whet her or not a project has become uneconom ¢ and ought to be
abandoned. As a result of noving that section to the back, the
sections nunmbered 43.90.130 through 43.90.240 in the resources
CS now correspond to 43.90. 120 through 43.90.230 in Version O

MR. BULLOCK explained that the provisions that relate to the
i nducenment act coordinator and the expedited review by state
agenci es have been noved into Article 2 because they relate to
the state’s relationship with the |icensee. Sections 43.90.400
and 43.90.410 in the resources CS are 43.90.250 and 43.90.260 in
Version O Also, the section that provides for devel opnent of a
job training program is nmoved from section 43.90.420 in the
resources CS to 43.90.470 in Version O

2:06:46 PM

MR, BULLOCK said additional uncodified sections have been added
at the end of the bill.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 18, 2007



Section 5 states legislative intent that the first request for
applications be made within 90 days after the effective date of
this Act. That corresponds with a change made in the resources
CS that said that the commi ssioners shall make the first request
within 90 days after the effective date. He explained that that
poses | egal problenms because it was unclear what woul d happen if
the conmm ssioners didn’t action within 90 days.

Section 6 is a new section adding uncodified law It states
| egislative intent that the courts expedite consideration of
cases related to this Act.

Section 7 is wuncodified law that nakes the Act severable,
meaning that if any section is found to be unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid, the remainder of the Act is in effect. This
section was noved from a codified section to an uncodified
section and has no substantive change.

2:07:47 PM
Senat or Huggins joined the conmttee.

MR. BULLOCK hi ghli ghted changes contained in Version O

Page 2, line 15, relates to the nonetary inducenent given to the
licensee. It says that the noney that’s provided to the |icensee
is subject to appropriation.

Page 3, line 12, relates to the 90 day requirenent that was
given to the conmissioners to issue the first request for
licenses. The I|anguage was changed to say "as soon as
practicable" to give needed admnistrative discretion to act
qui ckly, but not at the expense of being effective.

M5. DAVIS added that it Ilinks wth the provision in the
uncodi fied section.

MR. BULLOCK agr eed.

M5. DAVIS noted a typographical error on page 3, line 6. Renobve
the comma after “assets” to clarify that “assets” and “work
product” are in the sanme cl ause.

MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 4, lines 8-10, relate to the Ilist of requirenents an

applicant mnust satisfy when submitting an application. The new
| anguage requires an applicant to explain the practices for

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 18, 2007



controlling pipeline enmssions as established by the US
Envi ronnment al Protection Agency.

Page 6, line 13 through page 7, line 30, which deals with the
rolled-in rate versus incremental rate issue, was substantially
rewitten by the adm nistration.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Davis to provide an expl anati on.

2:11:52 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT j oi ned the neeting.

M5. DAVIS relayed that the provision inposes a requirenent on
how the pipeline ower wll conmt to handle future expansion
costs. In the resource CS the section was a single statenent
that the cap on rolled-in rate treatnent for expansion costs was
15 percent of the initial maximum recourse rate, but subsequent
testinmony indicated that public conpanies need to retain
flexibility to negotiate rates as opposed to the maxi mum
recourse rate, which she said is conparable to the “rack rate”
in the hotel i ndustry. To accommpdate the request for
flexibility, three mathematical caps are identified in Section
7(A): 1)An individual paying a nmaxi num recourse rate agrees to
pay 15 percent above that initial naxinmm recourse rate. 2)An
i ndi vidual that negotiated a rate agrees to pay 15 percent above
that negotiated rate. 3)A shipper that comes al ong subsequent to
the initial binding open season agrees to a cap that is 15
percent above the weighted average rate anongst the initial
shi ppers. In response to a question, she explained that the
different rates are weighted on the relative vol unes.

2:15:17 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the thought process behind
using a conbination of increnmental and rolled-in rates in
Section 7(A).

M5. DAVIS explained that it flows from subparagraph (D). Wen an
expansion costs nore than the 15 percent cap, the cost up to the
cap is proposed to be handled as a rolled-in rate while the
costs in excess of that cap are essentially open for the
pi peline conpany to propose increnmental rolled-in rates as
appropriate. Basically it’s not mandating a treatnent above the
15 percent cap, she stated.

SENATOR MGU RE asked what it does to exploration if the

pi peline conmpany is allowed to do a conbination of increnental
and rolled-in rates.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 18, 2007



M5. DAVIS explained that this is an effort to bal ance conpeting
interests. Cearly an explorer would prefer rolled-in rate
treatment through the entire process. But by the sanme token,
initial shippers would like to see increnental rates at a
certain point because it places the cost of the expansion that’s
beyond the cap, on the back of the expansionists.

SENATOR THERRI AULT added that it’s sonewhat balanced by the
di rection Congress gave FERC about not going into the realm of a
subsi dy.

M5. DAVIS said FERC certainly controls and governs the rules
regarding interstate pipelines. That’s why the |anguage says
that a pipeline will propose the support; it cannot nandate.

2:19:17 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT opined that this appears to be a fair match
wi th what FERC | anguage says.

M5. DAVIS stated that the admnistration disagrees with sone
menbers of the producer group as to when a subsidiary kicks in.
Utinmately FERC decides, but we believe this is a fair balance
bet ween the conpeting interests, she stated.

2:20: 45 PM
MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 9, line 6, has added |anguage to require the applicant to
commt to establish or use existing hiring facilities in the
state and, as far as practicable, to use state job centers as
wel | as Internet-based | abor exchange systens.

Page 9, lines 11-13, contain a new paragraph 16 that requires an
applicant to waive the right to appeal issuance of a license to
anot her applicant or a determ nation by the conm ssioners that
no license is awarded because no application sufficiently neets
the state’ s needs.

Page 9, lines 15-18, contain a definition for project |abor
agr eenent .

Page 9, lines 22-29, outline that additional information is
required of an applicant to disclose all affiliates and

significant players in carrying out the project.

2:22: 11 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 18, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the admnistration suggested the
| anguage i n paragraph 19.

M5. DAVIS replied the language is from the House CS and the
adm nistration didn’t object. It acknow edges the |large and
conpl ex business structure behind the applications and addresses
the admnistration’s desire to know about and fully understand
the scope and extent of ownership of those entities.
Representative Ranras wanted to be able to weight and eval uate
the extent of ownership in various conpani es.

MR. BULLOCK highlighted a link between this section and the
evaluation criteria in 43.90.170. He explained that part of the
criteria relates to the evaluation of the project’s Iikelihood
of success. This type of infornmation provides the conm ssioners
the opportunity to look at the history of the applicant and the
people the applicant plans to use to do the work. It basically
gi ves the conmi ssioners the body of information to work from

2:23:54 PM

IVB. DAVIS informed the committee that Senat or French’s
recommendat i on regar di ng t he t r eat ment of confidentia
information that an applicant wants back had been accomodat ed,
but it’s in the wong place. On line 18 the clause “and retained

under this chapter” ought to go down on line 22. The |ast
sentence in subsection (a) would read: “After a license is
awarded, all information submitted by the |icensee and retained

under this chapter shall be made public.”
CHAI R FRENCH f ound no objection to the change.
MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 11, lines 14-20, contain a provision that appears in the
House bill and is in the section relating to notice, review, and
public comrent on the applications. This allows information that
would otherwise be confidential to be disclosed to the
| egislative auditor, the fiscal analyst who serves as head of
the legislative finance division, their agents and contractors,
and legislative nenbers on the condition that they sign a
confidentiality agreenent prepared by the conm ssioners.

2:26: 04 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked about the deletion on line 6.

M5. DAVIS explained that on page 11, line 6, the phrase “not
public records and” was deleted as a technical fix. Another

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 18, 2007



suggested clarification is to insert “of the confidential
information” followng “summary” on line 11, to clarify what is
bei ng sumari zed.

At ease from2:27:25 PMto 2:27:48 PM

CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection to adoption of Version O
Finding no further objection, he announced that Version Ois the
wor ki ng docunent before the conmttee.

CHAIR FRENCH recapped the first suggested anmendnent and asked
for a notion.

SENATOR McGUI RE noved Anendnent 1.

Amendment 1

Page 3, line 6, follow ng “assets”:
Del ete the comm

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection Amendnent 1 1is
adopt ed.

SENATOR Mc@GUI RE noved Amendnent 2.

Amendnment 2

Page 10, line 18, following “licensee”:
Del ete “and retained under this chapter”

Page 10, line 22, following “licensee”:
I nsert “and retained under this chapter”

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection Amendnent 2 is
adopt ed.

2:29: 14 PM
SENATOR McGUI RE noved Anendnent 3.
Anendnent 3
Page 11, line 11, follow ng “summary”:

| nsert “of the confidential information”

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection Amendnent 3 1is
adopt ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 18, 2007



MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 13, line 2, contains the new |anguage “proposes a project
that”. It clarifies that it’s the project that will sufficiently
maxi m ze the benefits to the people. It’s not the application.

Page 13, line 12, specifies that the notice that a |licensee has
been identified is delivered to the Senate President and the
Speaker of the House.

Page 13, |line 21 through page 14, |line 10, provides for
| egi sl ative approval of the conm ssioners’ determnation wth
the rules commttee in each house having the responsibility of
introducing a bill. The bill rnust pass in 60 days affirmatively
approving the licensee or that |icensee will be deened rejected.
At that point the comm ssioners would then deci de whether or not
to start the process over again.

2:31:44 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked if that needs to be stated because when he
read the provision, he took it to be an inplication that the
license goes away if the bill doesn’t pass.

MR. BULLOCK cautioned against relying on inplication and
suggested adding language to say that if the bill isn't
approved, then the license may not be issued. “This operates
that way because only if there is approval do the conm ssioners
have the authority to issue the license,” he stated.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested adding “if the bill is not approved, the
|icense may not be issued.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI agreed and said he’'s also concerned with

the language on line 30 where it says that “issuance of the
license approved by the legislature is a final admnistrative
action”. He opined that it should be a bill. If it’'s an

adm nistrative action there are admnistrative appeals, superior
court appeals and suprene court appeals. “That’'s kind of the
whol e purpose of what we're trying to avoid here so | would
suggest we figure out a way to change that,” he stat ed.

MR. BULLOCK explained that the |anguage is there because it’s an
executive branch function to issue the license with |egislative
approval. If issuance of the license is subject to appeal, then
this sinply establishes the date the clock starts for an appeal.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 18, 2007



M5. DAVIS said she had the same question, but now that there’'s
| anguage in the earlier section that states that applicants
wai ve the right to appeal the award and the decision to nmake no
award, it’s unclear how that would interact with this sentence
unl ess soneone who isn't an applicant would have standing to
appeal .

CHAIR FRENCH said in addition to the applicants, there will be
many other concerned citizens that will be interested to know
just how this license is awarded. This recognizes the odd power-
sharing between the |egislature and the executive branch in the
i ssuance of this |license because there are separation of powers
issues here. “The reality is that in order to preserve sone
right to challenge the issuance of that license, | think you
have to put that flag post on there—+the final admnistrative
action. That’s the way we signal that,” he stated.

2: 35:46 PM

SENATOR McGU RE said she has grave concern with subsection (d).
At one tinme the legislature had the authority to disapprove the
license and now it’s been changed to approving the license in 60
days. She pointed out that trenmendous |everagi ng would occur and
said she wonders if the adm nistration has considered an escape
valve. She noted that “in the regulatory witing arena we do
have a process by which you have normal conmment periods and so
forth, but then we have energency regulations that come in.” The
|atter anticipates the unanticipated. She cautioned the
admnistration and the commttee nenbers to think Iong and hard
about the political ramfications of us not approving this in a
60- day peri od.

M5. DAVIS stated that the admnistration’s approach from the
start was to invite legislative involvenent while ensuring that
in the event of no action or inability to act, the process would
still rmove forward. If the legislature had red flags, the idea
was to create the opportunity for it to unify and point out a
problem “1 believe our approach was whether by comty or
agreeing to disagree as far as where the constitutional I|ines
lay, this governor was open to listening to that red flag and
that ‘stop’ and nmaking sure that if the state noved forward, it
noved forward on a unified basis or at least on a basis that
didn't have a legislature affirmatively saying ‘Don’t do it.’'”
This cuts the balance differently. Basically it says the
executive branch is doing a part and the legislative branch is
undertaking the full responsibility for the project noving
forward. That neans that the project can only nove forward if
the legislature agrees that it should nove forward.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 18, 2007



M5. DAVIS said regardless of good faith, wunder the current
| anguage the risk of an inability to agree will have one of two
outcones. One is that the governor will honor the will of the
| egi sl ature — as much as that can be done in the case of a non-
decision as opposed to a firm decision of approval or
di sapproval . The other outcone is that if the governor sees it
as an energency, she mght undertake the constitutional mantel
that she believes she does have, and nove forward. The current
| anguage “sets that stage for that kind of decision naking to a
future point.” It doesn't have to be decided today and it may
never be decided because the legislature recognizes the
i mportance of the gasline and would feel great pressure to do
sonething affirmative.

M5. DAVIS said she shares Senator MQuire’ s concern because no
one knows what the future holds. “All you can do is have faith
that everyone is going to do their job and that they' re going to
do it to the best of their ability and with the interest of
Al aska in their hearts.”

2:41: 03 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he has a separate train of thought on
the issue and asked if sonmething could be structured so that
lack of action would be declared by law, to be legislative
approval .

CHAI R FRENCH advised that he had a conversation with Tam Cook
about that issue. He suggested that a sentence could be inserted
to say that “failure of the legislature to approve the license
results in the approval of a license.” The difficulty is that
weakens the claim for legislative authority to approve the
contract. The reasoning is that if you believe the |egislature
has a legitimate role in approving the contract, yet a structure
is established that essentially cuts the |egislature out for
failure to act, then soneone claimng that the executive powers
infringed would point to that provision. The argunent would be
that the legislature recognized that a failure to act neans the
license springs to life. Ms. Cook analyzed that as a chip in the
wall of legislative authority, he said. “W could nake that
policy choice to insert the sentence, but it does weaken ... our
claimon having a right to approve the license.” He suppl enented
that saying that he agrees with Senator MCQuire; good bills die

all the time. “But | ultimately believe that the rule of 11 in
the Senate and the rule of 21 in the House prevails.” If certain
small mnority factions are trying to stop a bill there are many

nmet hods of overcom ng those resistances as long as people are

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 18, 2007



willing to use every parliamentary rule at their disposal

Utimately, the nmgjority wll in this building prevails no
matter who is claimng the prerogative to bottle a bill up or
subvert the will of the majority,” he stated.

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented that’s easier said than done, but
this is probably of such inportance to the state’'s future that
all of those things would be consi dered.

SENATOR THERRI AULT relayed his concern about the 60-day
timeline. Oiginally it was 30 days and the House decided on 90
days. Although he hadn’'t heard all that debate, he thought it
was predicated on the fact that the legislature wouldn’t be in
session while the admnistration was evaluating different
scenarios. He said he believes that |anguage in the bill says
that as soon as the bids are unsealed, the legislature and its
consultants get that information. W could be evaluating and
guestioning those proposals right along with the adm nistration

he said. If we hit the ground running we certainly don't need 90
days.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said if the legislative session starts in
February as sone |egislation suggests, then 60 days puts the
timetable into April, which mght inpact a full and robust field
season.

2:45: 47 PM

M5. DAVIS said 60 days recognizes the resource comittee’s
concern that it ought to be nore than 30 days and 90 days. She
noted that the new |anguage does give the legislature the
opportunity to hit the ground running and she fully expects the
| egislature to be aggressively and actively engaged in |ooking
at and discussing the applications with the conm ssioners as
they’re submtted. Wth that in mnd, we continue to believe
that 30 days is a better target, she stated.

Wth regard to field season, a conpany that’'s been designated
the selected applicant is going to be on notice that it needs to
start thinking about junping into action as per the project plan
that was outlined. If this next session begins in February, 30
days out is the beginning of March and in 60 days it’s into
April. She envisions that an applicant can nmake sone conti ngency
pl anning, but not entirely since the field season requires
contractual commtments for sone expensive on-the-ground work.
They mght work on permtting in advance, but Ilining up
resources and equipnent is risked capital so they mght be wary.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 18, 2007



She couldn’t speak for the various conpanies, but 30 days would
certainly be easier than 60 days.

MR. BULLOCK said his concern with time relates to the unknown
scope of the legislative review If it'’s limted to a review of
the application that the comm ssioners bring forward then 30 or
60 days would probably be reasonable. However, if the
| egi sl ature | ooks at other options and effectively does the sane
eval uation and ranking that the comm ssioners did to cone up

with a decision, thenit’ll take nore tine.

2:49: 44 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said if 60 days is the choice for this
bill, he would suggest changing the 90 day session bill so that

the session starts earlier next year.

CHAIR FRENCH said as a point of order, nothing in this bill
mandat es when the 60 day consideration begins. It could be in a
speci al session. He noted that subsection (c) at the top of page
14 envisions back-to-back special sessions in which the bill
woul d carry over fromone to the other. It will probably mandate
a two-thirds vote because it essentially suspends a Uniform
Rule. The conmttee should consider that there’s no tie between
the start of session and the start of deliberation of AG A

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that inserting |egislative approval
does dimnish the due process rights of the wunsuccessful
licensees. He said he can see that this is going to create a
wi nner track and a |oser track and those unsuccessful applicants
are going to ask to have their cases heard and their proposals
considered. That’'s why 60 days is in the right zone, he stated.

2:51:51 PM

SENATOR McGQUI RE said the reality is there will be nore to do
during that 60-day period than just analyzing the licensee. “I’'m
j ust concerned about the approval part,” she said.

CHAIR FRENCH rem nded nenbers that the bill wouldn't |eave the
commttee today so there’'s tinme to think about changes. He said
he would suggest inserting |anguage that says "If the bill is
not approved, the license may not be issued.” He said he'd ask
M. Bullock about where to insert the sentence, but it |ooks as
t hough the begi nning of subsection (d) would be a good spot.

MR, BULLOCK said he believes that’d work, but he’'d give it nore

t hought. He noted that on page 13 it says that issuance of the
license approved by the legislature is a final admnistrative

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 18, 2007



action. If it isn't approved, he suggests saying it is deened
not approved on day 61. The way it’s set up you' re going to have
the winner, the loser, and the alnost w nner. The al nbst w nner
is the one that was recommended to the legislature and never
approved. It’s at that point that you ll possibly see the
separation of powers chall enge, he cauti oned.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if there’'s a severability cl ause.
CHAIR FRENCH said it’s on page 30.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked what would happen under the severability
clause if the court agreed with an executive branch chall enge
that the legislature was attenpting to wusurp the rightful
executive branch authority.

MR, BULLOCK said he wouldn’t necessarily expect the court to say
the provision is invalid. It’s that the legislature didn't have
the authority to approve an executive branch act under Article
3, Section 1.

SENATOR McGUIRE said her research shows there are places the
court would rightfully rule that the legislature has mninal
authority relating to itens of appropriation and taxation
powers. She asked if he could envision the court bifurcating the
guesti on.

2:56: 17 PM

MR. BULLOCK said the legislature has the power of appropriation
so that’s one control over how this goes forward, but the
executive branch has the ability to nove funds within certain
accounts, so it could go forward anyway. Another separation of
power issue is the appointnent of the inducenent act coordinator
because there’s question whether |egislative approval of the
nom nation is within the scope of the constitution. As l|long as
the governor is working with the legislature and acting in
comty, the admnistration wouldn't be likely to raise the
separation of powers issue, but soneone from the public could.
The licensee that gets presented to the |egislature and doesn’'t
get approved may be the first one at the court door, he said.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if an application is gone forever if
it’s selected, but the legislature either turns it down or takes
no action on it.

M5. DAVI S expl ai ned that when the comm ssioners submt a notice
of selection, the |legislature wundertakes a review of that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- April 18, 2007



deci sion nmaking process. Invariably what has and has not been
selected in that process will be |ooked at so the unsuccessful
applicants’ information flows through into that process. If the
| egi sl ature approves the comm ssioners’ selection, then it noves
forward. If an applicant challenges the decision, presumably it
woul d have to be done on a constitutional basis because the
applicant waived the right to challenge the non-selection. |If
the legislature declines to approve the licensee, and the
executive branch honors that decision, the AQ A |anguage says
the conm ssioners nmay request new applications so the process
could start over. A second round m ght be fast tracked dependi ng
upon what the comm ssioners thought was out there by way of
additional applications or what they learned in the |egislative
review process. Certainly an unsuccessful applicant would not be
precl uded from participating, she stated.

Recess from 3: 00:13 PMto 3:00: 34 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said w thout question this has been and continues

to be one of the stickier policy issues in the bill. | don't
know if we’'re going to solve it before the bill |eaves the
conmttee tonorrow, but if you bring nme |anguage today or
tomorrow we’' Il try and accommobdate it, he said.

SENATOR MGU RE asked Chair French to request |eave from
what ever commttee conmmtnents nenbers have to provide tine to
work on this. “I think it’s going to take nore than the
potentially allotted tine,” she said.

SENATOR McGUI RE objected to the |anguage Chair French suggested
inserting in subsection (d) because in her view it further
delineates that point. “1’d like to think overnight about
whet her we go that direction or not,” she said.

CHAIR FRENCH said, “To the extent that 1’ve offered an
amendnent, 1’1l withdraw it.”

3:02: 14 PM

MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 15, lines 15 and 19, relate to inproving the net present
val ue when the comm ssioners are considering nodification to the
project plan. It’s tied to the valuation and the ranking
criteria.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 18, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI nentioned the AOGCC testinony and asked if
this mght be a good place to address the |ack of information
that’ s avail able regarding offtake fromthe North Sl ope.

M5. DAVIS said she’'s thought about how a reasonable applicant
could step forward and make application with the question stil
in the air as to what the AOCGCC will wultimtely determ ne
regarding an appropriate offtake |level for gas from Prudhoe or
fromother fields. For several years now everyone has heard that
4.3 bcf/day to 4.5 bcf/day offtake is reasonabl e and appropriate
given everyone’s understanding of the field, its geology, and
its reservoir. The question is where’'s the point in tine that
you check the box that AOGCC is on board and confortable wth
offtake rates. Applicants, independents in particular, are
legitimately concerned and it wouldn't be inappropriate to put
in language saying that a nodification or anmendnment can be
allowed as necessary as a result of AOGCC rulings that affect
gas of ftake.

3:07:53 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked Senator Welechowski if he had specific
| anguage in m nd.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he’d work on |anguage tonight and
tonmorrow and reiterated that he was very surprised to |earn that
the state is proceeding with a pipeline yet it has no idea how
much gas is available for offtake on the North Sl ope.

M5. DAVIS clarified that the testinony yesterday was that AOGCC,
as the primary policeman on reservoir nmanagenent issues, 1S
privy to confidential information through the producers’ very
extensive and expensive reservoir nodel. But as a royalty owner
the state also has the benefit of that information so it’'s not
quite correct to say that it doesn’'t have access to the
reservoir information. There’'s a division within the Departnent
of Natural Resources (DNR) that has access to the comercially
sensitive well information, but it’s not available to anyone
beyond that group. If the state were to conme forward as the
conplaining party she said she presunes there would be an
opportunity for a debate, but it would be in a manner that
protects the confidentiality of the information. Cearly, DNR
does not own that reservoir nodel so there are tools the state
doesn’t possess. But before we build our own reservoir nodel for
the purpose of challenging the producers’ nodel, she said to
remenber that we all share the sanme goal. W can assune the best
and work cooperatively and if we’'re wong we'll deal with it at
that juncture.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 18, 2007



3:12: 36 PM
MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 17, lines 23-26, relate to the abandonment provision and
the arbitration panel that would decide whether the project has
become uneconomic. Line 23 says that the law of the state wll
be applicable during the panel’s review Line 24 says that the
judgnment on the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered
in the state superior court. Lines 25 and 26 say that the
conmm ssioners and the licensee wll pick their respective
arbitrators from a |list that’'s provided by the Anerican
Arbitration Associ ation.

3:13: 42 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI explained that an arbitration association
typically provides a list of 9 or 11 names and then the

appointnment of the third arbitrator cones from the entire
national roster. He suggested the conmttee give sone thought
about how the list would be provided as well as the size.

MS. DAVIS stated that she and M. Bullock would be confortable
having all the arbitrators selected from the entire Anmerican
Arbitrati on Associ ati on national roster.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI voi ced agreenent.

CHAI R FRENCH said he’s conpelled to point out that this project
could be stopped by two arbitrators. He asked what thought the
adm nistration has given wth respect to an appeal of the
arbitrators’ decision

M5. DAVIS replied we have been confortable allowi ng an appeal to
be on the sanme basis as any other appeal, which is abuse of
di scretion.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if that works by operation of law or if
sonmet hing needs to be added to the bill to be explicit.

MR. BULLOCK said he doesn't know.
VB. DAVIS said she understands that unless it's stated

ot herwi se, the standard for review of an arbitrator decision is
abuse of discretion.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 18, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH said that item s been nagging and he couldn't |et
the nonent pass wthout saying sonething. He suggested the
commttee tal k nore about that.

3:16:40 PM

M5. DAVIS highlighted a technical correction on page 17, line
21, and suggested the conmttee change the word “or” to “and”
and the word “does” to “do”.

CHAIR FRENCH restated the suggested technical amendnent and
asked if there was objection to the notion.

Anendnent 4
Page 17, line 21, follow ng “comm ssioners”:
Del ete “or”
| nsert “and”
Page 17, line 21, following “licensee”:
Del ete “does”
| nsert “do”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for di scussi on.

MR, BULLOCK said it conmes down to who they disagree with; the
conmi ssioners’ are on one side and the |licensee is on the other.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested going through the logic chain. On |ines
16 and 17 it says if the comm ssioners and the |icensee agree
that it’s uneconomc, then it’'s over.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked what happens if one party di sagrees.

CHAIR FRENCH asked who they disagree with because they don’t
di sagree with thensel ves.

SENATOR McGUI RE said they could disagree with the proposition.

MR, BULLOCK said it's conceivable that the comm ssioners would
di sagree with each ot her.

SENATOR MGU RE said she sees it as disagreeing with the
proposition of econonmic viability.

CHAIR FRENCH said he thinks they’'d disagree with the judgnent of

the other. The decision about whether it's econom c hasn't been
made; one thinks it’'s econonmic and one thinks it isn't.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 18, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI renoved his objection.
CHAI R FRENCH found no further objection and Anendnent 4 passed.

3:20: 08 PM
MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 18, lines 4-14, contain a new subsection that requires the
arbitration panel to nake specific findings to conclude that the
project is unecononi c.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that this |eads to a new definition

VB. DAVIS said this is the long awaited definition of
“uneconom c.” She explained that there are two core elenents for
a project being uneconomc. The first is when a project doesn’t
have sufficient credit support to finance the construction of
the project through firm transportation conmtnents or
financing. She suggested the commttee insert on line 8, after
the word “commtnents” the words “governnment assistance or other
sources of financing”. [strike “or financing”]

SENATOR MGUI RE asked if it’s inportant to define other sources
of financing.

M5. DAVIS said once you start the list it’d be difficult to
st op.

SENATOR Mc@GUI RE noved Amendnent 5.

Anmendment 5

Page 18, line 8, follow ng “comm tnents”

Strike “or financing”

| nsert “governnent assistance or other sources of
fi nanci ng;”

CHAI R FRENCH found no objection and announced that Anmendnent 5
i s adopt ed.

3:24:04 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE referenced page 18, line 6, and asked why the
evi dence standard is a “preponderance of evidence” as opposed to
“cl ear and convi ncing evidence.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 18, 2007



M5. DAVIS said the definition was analyzed from nmany contexts
and the preponderance of evidence standard seened to be a fair
approach. She noted that there was concern that independents
m ght feel that the deck had been stacked and that it would be
difficult to extract thenselves. W thought this was a
comercially reasonabl e approach, she said.

CHAIR FRENCH said from a policy standpoint this seens to be a
counter argunent to the folks that are saying the AGA bill is
potentially a bad marriage that won't be over for 11 years. In
ny mnd, this is one of the circuit breakers, he said. If the
project is going bad because it's being poorly handled or
because the economcs collapse, you get out by going to the
arbitrators and getting a deci sion.

3:25: 47 PM

M5. DAVIS read the second part of the definition and said it’'s
designed so that arbitrators could |ook forward and ask whet her
a project has a reasonable likelihood of being econom c based on
factors that have to be plucked fromthe future. W think we’ ve
struck a good bal ance, she stated.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if a 100 percent |oad factor would be
what ever is proposed as the initial thruput.

M5. DAVIS said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referenced lines 11 and 13, and asked why
it talks about a producer rate of return and the upstream
investment as opposed to a pipeline rate of return and a
m dstream i nvest nent .

M5. DAVIS explained that both the producer rate of return and
the increnmental upstream investnment refer to costs that are
upstream of the inlet to the pipeline. The upstream investnent
that’s required is sonewhat vague because it depends upon what
part of the project is being provided by the pipeline. The idea
is to identify the body of costs and the likely revenue to see
if the net provides a prudent reasonable rate of return for a
prudent conpany. That’'s what an arbitrator would | ook at when
maki ng a deci sion, she stated.

3:31: 03 PM
MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 18, lines 23 and 24, has changed | anguage that says if the
licensee and the state agree or the arbitration panel finds that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 18, 2007



the project is uneconomic there’'s a list of things that the
licensee nust assign to the state. Conpensation for the
assi gnnent has been narrowed to the net anmount of the |icensee’s
gual i fied expenditures under 43.90.110. Those are expenditures
for which the state contri butes.

3:32:42 PM

Page 18, line 29, relates to the Al aska Gasline Inducenment Act
coordi nator. The coordinator position is placed in the Ofice of
the Governor and that office is required to provide

adm ni strative support.

Page 19, lines 5 and 6, add |anguage stating that the AQA
coordinator may be renoved from the position at the discretion
of the governor.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about the constitutionality of
confirmation by the |egislature.

MR, BULLOCK said this bill doesn't nake a change, but it does
raise a constitutional issue. The constitution authorizes
| egislative confirmation of the head of an executive branch
agency and nenbers of certain boards and conm ssions. This
position isn't like a board or conmssion and it doesn’'t have
conmi ssi oner type power; it’s nmore an onmbudsman rol e, he stated.

3:34:48 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said if the position isn't quasi judicial or
doesn’t have powers of a comm ssioner, then he doesn’t know what
the justification is for inserting |legislative involvenent
because it could be an unnecessary constitutional glitch.

SENATOR McGU RE asked if soneone could refresh her nenory about
what powers Drue Pearce has as Federal Coordinator for Al aska
Nat ural Gas Transportation Projects.

MR. BULLOCK explained that this position is nodeled after the
federal coordinator position and the president nmakes the
appoi nt nent .

CHAIR FRENCH said striking the sentence that says the
appointnent is subject to confirmation by the |egislature would
remove any question of a problem Responding to a question, he
said he didn't have strong feelings either way.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 18, 2007



MR. BULLOCK advised that the comrittee has the option of
achi eving whatever goal it likes by devel oping particular duties
or powers of the position.

CHAIR FRENCH said it’s sonething for the commttee to nmull over
3:37:14 PM

MR. BULLOCK advised that there were no changes in 43.90.260. The
provi sion was sinply rel ocat ed.

Page 19, lines 30 and 31 through page 20, line 2, relate to a
voucher. It says that in addition to the people that qualify for
t he resource i nducenent because t hey acquired firm

transportation capacity during the first binding open season, a
person with a voucher can also take advantage of the tax and
royal ty inducenent.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that on line 29, the reference to the tax
exenption inducenent was renoved. He asked M. Bullock if he had
any comrent.

MR. BULLOCK said no; it goes back to discussions on Article 9,
Sections 1 and 4 as to whether taxing power can be contracted
away. The inducenent in 43.90.310 refers to the royalty
i nducenent that is «contractual between the state and the
producers. On page 22, lines 17 through 22, |anguage was renoved
that refers to the certificate issued by the conmm ssioner of
revenue that provides a contractual basis for the tax exenption.

CHAIR FRENCH highlighted the fact that this is a big policy

change because it nmakes the tax exenption a general |aw
exenption. In your view and parenthetically in nmy view this
makes it nore likely constitutional, he stated. [If it’'s
contractual, it’s nore |likely unconstitutional.

MR. BULLOCK expressed the opinion that it’'s consistent wth
Article 9 Sections 1 and 4. Section 1 says the state can’t
contract or suspend the power to tax except as provided in the
Article. Section 4 allows exenptions to be created by genera
law. He said that in this case it’s created by general |aw, and
the 10 year provision expresses the intent of the legislature at
the time of enactnent. If there’s a fiscal crisis, the state
woul dn’t need to argue whether a law is inpairing the
obligations of a contract thereby raising Article 1, Section 15
issues. It's just a matter of general law. The power of the
| egislature is there, but the political question is whether the
| egi sl ature would actually vote to change this section given the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- April 18, 2007



expected reliance on the intent at the time of enactnment. |If
there’s a problem 8 years down the road sone |egislators won't
support a change because of that intent and others w |l argue
it’s necessary and the |legislature can nake the determ nation as
it cones up, he said.

3:41:57 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated for the record that if this is ever
reviewed, his intent is that having this provision in the bil
is an exenption. It's perm ssible under Article 9, Section 4 of
the constitution and it’'s intended to be an inducenent to
i ndustry.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said, “I wonder if M. Davis wants to concede
defeat or the administration still has a different view that, in
fact, AGAis the | aw of general application.”

M5. DAVIS said yes; we continue to believe that the contractua
underpi nnings are inportant in that they anplify the ability to
ensure fiscal certainty through the inpairnments clause. Al so, we
don’t believe it restricts it from being considered a genera
| aw, she st at ed.

3:43: 17 PM

MR. BULLOCK pointed out that the other problem wth these
constitutional issues is when they nmight be considered by the
court. It goes back to declaratory judgnment issues and the court

not taking action until the issue is actually presented, he
said. If the issue is whether or not the contracting away is
unconstitutional, the court my say it’'s speculative as to

whether there would be a constitutional problem If it’s
dormant, the court would say wait and see what happens. Even
t hough the bill creates a statute of limtation for bringing a
constitutional <challenge, it’'s in the court’s discretion to
accept it or not. The court mght say it’s not going specul ate
on whether 8 years down the road the legislature is going to
increase the tax, which would trigger the action under this
secti on.

M5. DAVIS said on the issue of ripeness, we would see this as
not a dormant issue from the beginning. There are conpanies
essentially offering to contract with the state for billions of
dollars in reliance wupon that ©provision being valid and
constitutional. So there are live actions in the hearing today
that are affected by whether or not that law is constitutional
So we would argue fervently that the issue can be resolved
sooner rather than |ater.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 18, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH said it sounds as though you' d welconme a
constitutional challenge imediately after the bill goes into
ef fect.

M5. DAVIS said we are in favor of fiscal certainty and anything
that resolves question in applicants’ and participants’ mnds is
good for the process.

SENATOR MGU RE comented the Ilegislature doesn’'t do things
quickly so it’s likely that there won't be a tax change for 10
years. She said she can see both sides clearly, but she can't
get away from the notion about one |egislature binding another
She said she also recognizes the comercial reality the
adm nistration is facing. She said she knows the folks in this
room need certainty to predict economcs, but there's sone
precedential concern about future industries comng forth wth
simlar argunents.

3:.47. 43 PM

MR. BULLOCK said he has two points of view as to whether the
power to tax can be contracted away. H's opinion is that it
woul d be wunconstitutional, but as a legislative attorney he
advi ses caution because it has to do with inpairing |egislative
power in the future.

MR. BULLOCK continued to highlight changes.

Page 20, lines 9 and 10, and page 22, lines 21 and 22, have
simlar provisions for the royalty and tax inducenents that
refer to the voucher that’'s created in the 43.90.330. Wthout
the changes the royalty inducenent and tax inducenent could only
be enjoyed on the gas that's transported in the capacity that
was acquired by the producer. This section recognizes that the
voucher has been created and it gives another option to qualify
for the inducenents.

Page 22, line 30 through page 23, line 8, is a new section that
provi des for inducenment vouchers.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Davis for an expl anati on.

M5. DAVI S explained that 43.90.330is the provision that allows a
buyer of gas from a producer on the North Slope to be able to
acquire capacity in a pipeline at the initial open season and
pl ace that gas into the pipe and ship it. In all likelihood this
will be a nechanism used by in-state purchasers of gas, she

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 18, 2007



said. W wanted to ensure that there was a neans for buyers
willing to make a commtnent in an initial open season to be
able to negotiate the nore favorable pricing provisions that
woul d flow from having the associated royalty and benefits. This
provision has been designed +to enable that conmer ci al
transaction. As previously witten, the only people who could
enjoy royalty and tax benefits were the producers thensel ves.

SENATOR McGUI RE stated enphatic support for the provision

M5. DAVIS said it’'s a conplex topic, and it needs a bit nore
t weaki ng, but she hopes to have the final |[|anguage either
tomorrow or when the bill is before the finance conmttee.

CHAIR FRENCH stated that he shares the general enthusiasm for
the policy direction, he recognizes the conplexity of the topic,
and he appreciates that nore work needs to be done.

3:53:20 PM
CHAI R FRENCH recessed the neeting until 5:30 pm

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 18, 2007



